










































CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD DECEMBER 7, 2015 

 
December 7, 2015   Page 1 

  
Regular Meeting - Transact Routine Business 
 
Mayor Barnhart called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. with roll call as 
follows:  
   
     PRESENT:   Mayor Barnhart 
     COUNCIL:  Karper, Petersen, Shepard, Fisher and Lovering 
     ABSENT:     Plevel 
 

 
 
 
ROLL CALL 

Also present were City Manager Nicosia, City Clerk Staaland, City Attorney 
Breck, Police Chief Perry and City Planner Mulcahy.   
 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 

 
PLEDGE 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Mayor Barnhart requested a motion to approve the agenda. Councilman 
Fisher moved to approve the agenda, second by Councilman Shepard and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

AGENDA  
APPROVAL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
Councilman Shepard moved to approve the consent agenda noting that all 
claims appeared to be in order, second by Councilman Fisher. Motion carried 
with Council voting as follows:  AYES:  Fisher, Karper, Lovering, Petersen, 
Shepard and Barnhart NOES: None. ABSENT:  Plevel 

A. Approval of Claims - $ 180,690.77 - December 7, 2015 
B. Approval of Payroll Claims - $60,385.01 - November 20, 2015 
    Approval of Payroll Claims - $87,729.83 – December 3, 2015    
C. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – November 15, 2015 
D.  Approval of MOU with Flathead County EMS and authorize City 

Manager to   sign.  
E.  Approval of Ambulance Services Agreements with Three Rivers EMS 

and authorize City Manager to sign.  
 F.  Approval of City Attorney Contract Renewal – January 1, 2016 – 

December 31, 2017 and authorize City Manager to sign. 
G. Approval of BNSF Easement for Sewer Main Extension (Columbia Falls 

Industrial Park) and authorize City Manager and City Attorney to 
execute documents on behalf of the City. 

 
VISITOR/PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Ron Role, 218 North Hilltop said he was in attendance to discuss Resolution 
#1471 concerning Lew Bonitz rifle business conditional use permit. Mr. Role 
said he has tried unsuccessfully to get Mr. Bonitz to comply with the road 
maintenance condition. Mr. Role said in April he saw Mr. Bonitz and asked 
him to get something done on the road. Mr. Bonitz told him that he picks up 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 
APPROVAL 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD DECEMBER 7, 2015 

 
December 7, 2015   Page 2 

his supplies at Super 1 Foods and delivery trucks do not use the roadway. Mr. 
Role said he spoke to the City Manager three months ago and didn’t hear back 
from her. He reported that he came in last week and City Manager Nicosia 
said she called and left a message, which Mr. Role said he never received. Mr. 
Role feels all he gets are excuses on why the road maintenance is not 
complete. Mayor Barnhart said it sounds like you are inquiring about 
Condition 7 of Exhibit “A”. City Manager Nicosia said she reviewed the road 
maintenance conditions in 2011 with the City Planner, Mr. Bonitz and Mr. 
Patterson. In 2006 Resolution 1471 was adopted by council approving the 
Conditional Use Permit with 7 conditions. A CUP was required as it exceeded 
the allowance for non-family employees and space.  If a business generates 
more than 8 vehicle trips per day that would trigger a Conditional Use Permit. 
Mr. Bonitz planned on having three non-family employees as well as using 
the entire shop for his business in 2006. In 2011 Mr. Bonitz had layed off his 
last employee and inquired about alternate dust abatement provisions. 
Nicosia and Mulcahy reviewed the CUP requirements including talking to 
Mr. Patterson, the owner of the road and the adjacent land owner. Mr. Bonitz 
met the delivery trucks at Super 1, no longer had any employees, and did not 
have customers visiting his property thus his business use of the roadway did 
not exceed that of a typical residential use.  Nicosia reported that Mr. Role 
came in this summer shortly after the City approved the Patterson’s CUP to 
discuss road maintenance, noting increased traffic but he had no problem 
with Patterson’s use of the road without dust abatement requirements. 
Nicosia reported that before Mr. Patterson passed away, he and Mr. Bonitz 
worked together on dust mitigation which included road oil applications 
along with watering. She noted that while Mr. Bonitz has not completely 
closed down his gun shop you would not even know there was a business 
there; they have no more traffic than a single family residence and he has used 
alternative dust abatement measures for the last four years.  Mayor Barnhart 
asked how the City can change the conditions that were adopted with the 
original conditional use permit. Nicosia said the conditional use was based on 
three non-family employees, deliveries and additional business traffic. In 
addition to the use changing drastically, Mr. Bonitz applied alternative dust 
abatement practices by stopping the delivery trucks from using the road; 
thereby changing the original use in the conditional use permit.  
Mr. Role stated Len Patterson gave Mr. Bonitz $20,000 to pave the road and it 
was never done. City Planner Mulcahy said in looking at the home occupation 
standards there are two triggers that require a conditional use permit. 1. If 
they exceed more than one employee outside of the home or exceed ¼ of the 
area of the home. 2. If there was significant traffic to the home they would 
have to comply with paving or dust abatement. Essentially as the zoning 
administrator we can review it for compliance said Mulcahy. Mulcahy said he 
worked with Clayton Patterson on his CUP and he has one non-family 
employee and very few, if any, customers coming to the shop as they use mail 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD DECEMBER 7, 2015 

 
December 7, 2015   Page 3 

orders. Eric said we can go out and take a look at Mr. Bonitz’s shop for an 
additional compliance review but he is not going to make somebody pave a ¼ 
mile of a road if they do not impact the roadway more than a typical home 
occupation or residential use. 
Councilman Shepard asked Mr. Role if there was a lot of ATV use on the road. 
Mr. Role said no there was not much. Mr. Role said he was here to protect his 
family. Mayor Barnhart thanked Mr. Role for bringing his concern to Council 
attention. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/NOTICES: 
A. HEARINGS: 
A. The Columbia Falls City-County Planning Board held a public hearing for 
the following items at their regular meeting on Tuesday, November 10th at 
6:30 p.m. at the Council Chambers of City Hall, 130 6th Street West, 
Columbia Falls, Montana.  The Columbia Falls City Council will hold a 
subsequent hearing on December 7th, 2015 starting at 7:00 p.m. in the same 
location. 

 
Columbia Falls Zoning Regulations – Title 18 (Zoning Text Amendment):  
A request by the City of Columbia Falls to amend certain portions of the text 
of the Columbia Falls Zoning Regulations (Title 18 of the Columbia Falls 
Municipal Code).  The City proposes changes to 18.410.030.A(G) (Accessory 
Building Height in the CR zoning) and increase the building height for a 
detached garage from 15-feet to 22-feet.  Amend Chapter 18.324.040(H) – 
Building Height increasing the existing 30-feet to 35-feet height to match all 
of the other residential zoning districts.  Adding a new provision for 
Clustering in the SAG zones enabling a property owner to use the density 
provisions of the zone to create smaller lots in exchange for open space or 
agriculture easements.  Explore the possibilities of creating off-premise 
signage and other sign provisions for the downtown CB-4 (Central Business 
District).  Propose other amendments to the Sign Chapter 18.438 to comply 
with recent US Supreme Court decisions.  
 
City Planner Mulcahy presented staff report CZTA-15-02. Mulcahy discussed 
the Accessory building height going from 15 feet to 22 for boat and camper 
storage. The Columbia Falls Board of Adjustment has approved several 
variances for accessory building height in the last two years due to the 
increased height of vehicles, boats and campers. Mulcahy is also 
recommending increasing the building height from the existing 30 feet to 35 
feet in all residential districts. The signage text amendments are a result of a 
recent US Supreme Court opinion requiring sign regulations to be content 
neutral while still regulating time, place and manner of signage. The Cluster 
development provisions had been looked at by the City in 2008 but not 
adopted. A recent Board of Adjustment variance would not have been 

 
PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Title 18 Zoning Text 
Amendments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD DECEMBER 7, 2015 

 
December 7, 2015   Page 4 

necessary had the Cluster Development provision been in place.  The text 
amendments were approved by the Planning Board in November. The Board 
voted to amend the proposed regulations by changing the set back from the 
high water mark from 50 feet to 100.  
Councilman Peterson asked if all signs can be 20 square feet. Mulcahy said 
we are not saying that all signs are equal but we are making a distinction 
between temporary signs and permanent signs. Councilman Shepard asked 
Mulcahy when political signs need to be taken down. Mulcahy replied it 
comes down to freedom of speech, the courts have said we are treading on 
thin ice if we tell people they have to take them down which is why the text 
amendment strikes the language referring to length of time. Councilman 
Fisher asked if on page 79, item 3 should read 20 sq. feet. Nicosia said yes 
that is correct. Councilman Shepard said technically we can enforce the signs 
within the zoning district that are in bad shape. 
 
Mayor Barnhart opened the Public Hearing at 7:42 p.m. 
 
City Manager Nicosia said there was public comment from Bill Dakin on the 
proposed text amendments. City Planner Mulcahy said he had corresponded 
with Mr. Dakin via email on the said topic. 
 
With no further comments Mayor Barnhart closed the Public Hearing at 7:44 
p.m. 
 
Councilman Fisher moved to adopt staff report CZTA-15-02 as findings of 
fact, second by Councilman Karper with Council voting as follows. AYES: 
Karper, Lovering, Petersen, Shepard, Fisher and Barnhart. NOES: None. 
ABSENT: Plevel. 
 
Councilman Shepard motioned to approve the Text Amendments and direct 
City Manager and City Attorney to prepare applicable documents for the 
next regular council meeting, second by Councilman Fisher with Council 
voting as follows. AYES: Lovering, Petersen, Shepard, Fisher, Karper and 
Barnhart. NOES: None. ABSENT: Plevel. 
 

B. On November 2, 2015, the City of Columbia Falls Council approved a 
Resolution of Intent to Annex certain wholly surrounded lands in accordance 
with the authority granted in Title 7, Part 45, M.C.A.  Resolution 1715 
includes Parcel A on Certificate of Survey No. 19988, Records of Flathead 
County, Montana. 
 
The City of Columbia Falls Council will meet on Monday, December 7, 2015 
at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 130-6th Street West, 
Columbia Falls, Montana.  At that time, the Council will hold a public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Intent to Annex 
Wholly Surrounded 
Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD DECEMBER 7, 2015 

 
December 7, 2015   Page 5 

hearing on this annexation and a vote on a resolution to annex Parcel A of 
Certificate of Survey No. 19988. 
 
City Manager Nicosia said on November 2, 2015 Council approved a 
Resolution of Intent to Annex Parcel “A” as wholly surrounded property.  
The County initially showed the parcel as in the City after its creation but it 
was not officially annexed. This was the only wholly surrounded lot that is 
not annexed. The property owner was notified by regular mail and certified 
mail. The City has not received any public comments and City staff 
recommends approval of the annexation. 
 
Mayor Barnhart opened and closed the Public Hearing at 7:47 p.m. with no 
public comment. 
 
Councilman Shepard made motion to approve the annexation and direct City 
Manager and City attorney to prepare applicable documents for the 
December 21, 2015 council meeting, second by Councilman Lovering with 
Council voting as follows. AYES: Petersen, Shepard, Fisher, Karper, Lovering 
and Barnhart. NOES: None. ABSENT: Plevel. 
 
C.  NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to all persons that a petition has been filed 
with the City Council of the City of Columbia Falls, Montana, requesting the 
abandonment, discontinuance and vacating of certain public way in the City 
of Columbia Falls, Montana, more particularly described as follows: 
 
A 10’ strip of Eighth Street East adjacent to Lot 1, Block 61. Abandonment of 
the 10’ strip of street right-of-way will allow the adjacent property owner to 
build a retaining wall to accommodate the slope of the lot. The abandonment 
will be subject to the rights of the City or any other public utility to access, 
operate and maintain any public utilities currently located within the right of 
way. 
 
City Manager Nicosia said abandoning the 10’ will allow for a deck and 
retaining wall. Nicosia said there was no written public comment received 
and City staff recommends Council approval. 
 
Mayor Barnhart opened and closed the Public Hearing at 7:50 p.m. 
 
Councilman Shepard motioned to approve the abandonment of the 10’ on 8th 
street and direct City Manager and City Attorney to prepare applicable 
documents for the next regular meeting second by Fisher, with Council 
voting as follows. AYES: Shepard, Fisher, Karper, Lovering, Petersen and 
Barnhart. NOES: None. ABSENT: Plevel. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD DECEMBER 7, 2015 

 
December 7, 2015   Page 6 

 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
A.  CFAC – EPA Alternative Cleanup Process 
Mayor Barnhart said at this point the EPA and CFAC have signed an 
Administrative Order of Consent to begin testing. The EPA did not list the 
project under the Superfund listing in November and at this point, the City 
Council does not have to take any action. The next meeting regarding the 
CFAC site is January 21, 2016, Columbia Falls High School Cafeteria at 6:00 
p.m. 
 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Arbor Day Proclamation 
Mayor Barnhart read aloud the Arbor Day Proclamation and proclaimed May 
6, 2016 as Arbor Day. 
  
B. Board appointments (Board of Adjustment, Tree Board and Columbia Falls 
City-County Planning Board): 
Councilman Shepard motioned to approve the following Board positions: 
Board of Adjustment: Roger Newman, Steve Marquesen and Alida Wright. 
Tree Board: Darin Fisher 
 City-County Planning Board/Zoning Commission City Appointments: 
Courtney Nolan and Steve Duffy 
Motion seconded by Councilman Petersen and the motion carried with all 
members voting in favor, Plevel absent. 
 
REPORTS/BUSINESS FROM MAYOR & COUNCIL: 
Councilman Fisher said he noticed the new mural being put up on Nucleus 
Ave. (The Nord Building owned by Councilman Petersen). 
Councilman Lovering said the sidewalk in front of Hungry Horse News is 
covered with debris and realizes it is not City property. Nicosia said it is 
Department of Transportation property and she will contact them.  Lovering 
asked who owns the retaining wall by the sidewalk and the barriers. Nicosia 
stated that the wall is probably owned by the adjacent business but the City 
placed the concrete barriers after the road was closed and abandoned. 
Councilman Shepard said some folks in the Heights were concerned with the 
dust from the demolition of the rodmill at CFAC. Shepard said he made 
informational copies of asbestos and Environmental Health in the Aluminum 
Industry for council review. There was not any water put on to mitigate the 
dust. How are they going to get a safe route through town? Nicosia said to 
clarify she spoke with Mike Cirian, EPA, today and Calbag has a demolition 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORTS FROM  
MAYOR AND 
COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD DECEMBER 7, 2015 

 
December 7, 2015   Page 7 

permit from DEQ. Mayor asked about the Flathead County Health 
Department and air monitoring, noting that there are a lot of concerned 
citizens. 
Councilman Shepard said Mark from FWP will be up to discuss the pond at 
River’s Edge Park.  
Councilman Petersen asked about parking at Coffee Traders, he thought there 
was going to be trees along the parking area. Nicosia said she reminded 
Xanterra of that and will follow up after the holidays.  
Petersen asked are we going to get the agreement from the State on the 
intersection. Nicosia said she has calls into DOT as the Planning Office said 
they will not put the ROW under the City’s control. Mayor Barnhart asked if 
we can we get Dee Brown on this. 
Councilman Karper confirmed that there was not a Tree Board meeting 
scheduled for Tuesday, December 8th. 
Mayor Barnhart said the new format of the council packet on the city website 
is nice. Mayor said The Night of Lights parade was huge and there were a lot 
of people in attendance. Mayor asked Nicosia if she had the meeting with 
Plum Creek on the Pit to Park. Nicosia said no she had not. Mayor said he 
walked home from the parade and mentioned we really need to do something 
about the sidewalks.  Nicosia said that was part of the reason we listed it as a 
need in the Urban Renewal Plan.  
Mayor reminded Nicosia that it is a city priority to get people hooked up to 
city sewer. Nicosia said she is working with Public Works Director Jenkins on 
this issue. 
Councilman Shepard commented on the Columbia Falls Night of Lights 
Parade and the respect shown by the public when the American Legion Post 
presented the flags; it is not the same in other parades. 
 
Councilman Karper reported that Mr. Nolan has done a good job on putting a 
fence up for his horses and in making the property real nice. 
 
 
REPORTS/BUSINESS FROM CITY ATTORNEY: 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORT FROM 
CITY ATTORNEY 

 
CITY MANAGER: 
Nicosia said she was asked to testify at the Revenue and Transportation 
Committee meeting in Helena. She recommended having a standing Local 
Government Funding Committee due the complexity of the local government 
funding sources and the state entitlement program. She reported that it was a 
productive meeting. Nicosia also reported on the MLCT meetings that will 
occur in our area in February and the goal of inviting local legislatures to 
participate.  
Nicosia reported that FEC sent an easement document to the City for the 

 
CITY MANAGER 
REPORT 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD DECEMBER 7, 2015 

 
December 7, 2015   Page 8 

hotel/conference center that includes a service line across the City’s park that 
the City had specified in writing that it could not be placed on city property. 
Schellinger Construction installed the service line under the direction of the 
construction supervisor even though the City had advised them not to place it 
at that location. The City’s notification that the line was placed on City 
property anyway came from FEC’s easement document. Council direction 
was the line should be moved.  
FEC could not get the power in at the train before Night of Lights but it 
should be in soon and the train will be lit for the holiday season. 
 
 
A.  INFORMATIONAL CORRESPONDENCE - List available for Review  
B.  Reports: 
      a. Finance – November Reports 
  

CORRESPONDEN
CE 

ADJOURN: Upon motion duly made by Councilman Karper and seconded by 
Councilman Shepard the meeting adjourned at  9:06 p.m. 

 
ADJOURN 
 

 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED BY COUNCIL ACTION: December 21, 2015 
 
 









 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 756 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, 
AMENDING PORTIONS OF TITLE 18 OF THE COLUMBIA FALLS MUNICIPAL CODE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to increase the accessory building height to allow 
for current building standards and to amend the building height from 30’ to 35’ to be 
consistent within all of the residential districts. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Columbia Falls City-County Planning Board and Zoning Commission 
conducted a public hearing on the proposed text amendments on Tuesday, November 10, 
2015 and recommended adoption of the text amendments; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined, upon conducting a subsequent hearing 
on December 7, 2015, that said amendments to the Columbia Falls Municipal Code are in 
the best interests of the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section One.   Sections Amended:  Maximum Height in CR-1 Suburban Residential 
18.322.040 D, CR-2 One-Family Limited Residential 18.324.040 H, CR-3 One Family 
Residential 18.326.040 D. and Chapter 18.410 Accessory Uses 18.410.030 G, Columbia 
Falls Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section Two.  Inconsistent Provisions:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section Three.    Severability:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any 
provision of this Ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision. 
 
 Section Four.   Effective Date:   This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days 
after its final passage and approval by the City Council of the City of Columbia Falls, 
Montana.  
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA 
THIS 21st DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015, THE COUNCIL VOTING AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 AYES:   
 

 NOES:  
 
 ABSENT:  
       ___________________________________                                                     
       City Clerk 
 
 APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, THIS _____ DAY OF 
JANUARY, 2016. 
 



 

 

       _________________________________                                                          
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________                                 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Chapter 18.322 CR-1 ONE-FAMILY LIMITED RESIDENTIAL 
 

18.322.040 Bulk and dimensional requirements. 
  The bulk and dimensional requirements for the CR-1 district are as follows: 

A. Minimum lot area: one (1) acre; 
B. Minimum lot width: one hundred fifty (150) feet; 
C. Minimum yard requirements: 

1. Front: thirty (30) feet; 
2. Side: twenty (20) feet each; 
3. Side corner: thirty (30) feet; 
4. Rear: twenty (20) feet; 

D. Maximum height: thirty (30) thirty-five (35); licensed amateur radio operators antennae-
seventy-five (75) feet; 

E. Permitted lot coverage: thirty (30) percent; 
F. Maximum fence height: 

1. Front: three (3) feet; 
2. Side: six (6) feet; 
3. Rear: six (6) feet; 

G. Off-street parking: See Chapter Parking and Loading 18.500.  
(Ord. 523 § 1(part), 1989) 
 
 
Chapter 18.324 CR-2 ONE-FAMILY LIMITED RESIDENTIAL 
 
18.324.040 Bulk and dimensional requirements. 
  The bulk and dimensional requirements of the CR-2 district are as follows: 

A. Minimum lot area: twenty thousand (20,000) square feet; 
B. Minimum lot width: one hundred (100) feet; 
C. Minimum yard requirements: 
D. Front: twenty-five (25) feet; 
E. Side: fifteen (15) feet each; 
F. Side corner: fifteen (15) feet; 
G. Rear: twenty (20) feet; 
H. Maximum height: thirty (30) thirty-five (35) feet; licensed amateur radio operators 
antennae-seventy-five (75) feet; 
I. Permitted lot coverage: thirty (30) percent; 
J. Maximum fence height: 
K. Front: three (3) feet; 
L. Side: six (6) feet; 
M. Rear: six (6) feet; 
N. Off-street parking: See Chapters Parking and Loading 18.500.  
 (Ord. 523 § 1(part), 1989; Ord. No. 716, exhibit A, 4-5-2010) 



 

 

Chapter 18.326 CR-3 ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

18.326.040 Bulk and dimensional requirements. 

The bulk and dimensional requirements for the CR-3 district are as follows: 
A. Minimum lot area: nine thousand six hundred square feet; 
B. Minimum lot width: eighty feet; 
C. Minimum yard requirements: 
1. Front: twenty-five feet, 
2. Side: five feet each, 
3. Side corner: fifteen feet, 
4. Rear: twenty feet; 
D. Maximum height: thirty (30) thirty-five (35) feet; licensed amateur radio operators antennae-
seventy-five feet; 
E. Permitted lot coverage: thirty percent; 
F. Maximum fence height: 
1. Front: three feet, 
2. Side: six feet, 
3. Rear: six feet; 
G. Off-street parking: See Chapters Parking and Loading 18.500 
 (Ord. 687 § 2(part), 2007) 
 
 
 
Chapter 18.410 ACCESSORY USES 

18.410.030 Accessory Use Restrictions.  
The following is a list of restrictions on accessory uses and structures: 
A. In CR zones, there shall be no storage or overnight parking of trucks, buses, or other 
vehicles with a manufacturers rating of more than two tons; 
B. No accessory structures except fences, walls, or hedges shall be constructed in any front 
yard. Accessory buildings shall not be located any closer than five feet to a rear or side lot line in 
zoning districts with setback requirements; except storage shed with an area 120 square feet or 
less.  
C. Accessory buildings in a commercial or industrial district shall comply to the setback 
requirements for principal buildings when located adjacent to a residential use or district. 
D. On corner lots, accessory structures and uses shall conform to the setback requirements 
on both street frontages. 
E. Accessory buildings shall not cover more than twenty-five percent of any rear yard in CR 
zones. 
F. When a garage or carport is entered from an alley, it shall not be located closer than ten 
feet from the alley right-of-way line. 
G. Accessory buildings shall not exceed a height of fifteen feet twenty two feet in CR zones 
or the maximum height permitted for a principal building in other zones. 
H. Attached accessory buildings shall be located pursuant to the requirements for principal 
buildings. 



 

 

I. No accessory structure or use shall be constructed or established on any lot prior to the 
time of the substantial completion of the construction of the principal structure to which it is an 
accessory.  
(Ord. 615 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 601 § 7, 1997; Ord. 544 § 3, 1991; Ord. No. 716, exhibit A, 4-5-
2010) 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 757 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, 
AMENDING TITLE 18 CHAPTER 18.438 SIGNS OF THE COLUMBIA FALLS MUNICIPAL 
CODE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Chapter 18.438 Signs to comply with a 
recent US Supreme Court decision requiring sign regulations be content neutral while still 
regulating time, place and manner of signage. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Columbia Falls City-County Planning Board and Zoning Commission 
conducted a public hearing on the proposed text amendments on Tuesday, November 10, 
2015 and recommended adoption of the text amendments; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined, upon conducting a subsequent hearing 
on December 7, 2015, that said amendments to the Columbia Falls Municipal Code are in 
the best interests of the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section One.   Section Amended: Chapter 18.438 Columbia Falls Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to read as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section Two.  Inconsistent Provisions:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section Three.    Severability:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any 
provision of this Ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision. 
 
 Section Four.   Effective Date:   This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days 
after its final passage and approval by the City Council of the City of Columbia Falls, 
Montana.  
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA 
THIS 21st DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015, THE COUNCIL VOTING AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 AYES:   
 
 NOES:  

 
 ABSENT:  
       ___________________________________                                                     
       City Clerk 
 
 APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, THIS _____ DAY OF 
JANUARY, 2016. 
 
       _________________________________                                                          



 

 

       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________                                 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 

18.438.010 – Signs - Purpose  
The purpose of these standards is to prescribe standards for the location, design, color, illumination, 
height and size of all types of signs within the City of Columbia Falls in order to protect the unique 
natural beauty and small town character of the City, our primary assets.  This article also intends to 
promote the following.  
A. To ensure that signs preserve and protect the public health, safety, and welfare by not allowing 

signs that constitute a traffic or pedestrian safety hazard, or obstruct public ways; or create a 
nuisance. 

B. To protect and enhance the community’s image while allowing local businesses to communicate 
with potential customers in a reasonable manner.    

C. To encourage the innovative use of design that is creative and distinctive, compatible with its 
surroundings, is an integral component of the style and character of the building to which it 
relates, is appropriate to the activity to which it pertains and is appropriately sized for its context. 

D. To maintain and enhance the aesthetic environment while promoting creativity and the City’s 
ability to attract sources of economic development and growth. 

E. To promote both renovation and proper maintenance. 
F. To encourage the construction of signs of natural materials which are compatible with the historic, 

cultural and natural surroundings. 
G. To promote clear views of the natural surroundings by minimizing visual clutter and reducing the 

competition for airspace. 
H. To eliminate distracting lighting, excessive glare and light pollution by reasonably limiting the 

illumination of signs and buildings to subdued, adequately shielded or concealed light sources. 
I. To enable the fair and consistent enforcement of these sign regulations. (Ord. 689 § 2(part), 2007; 

Ord. No. 716, exhibit A, 4-5-2010) 
 
18.438.015 Scope 
This chapter shall not regulate official traffic or government signs; the copy and message of signs, signs 
not intended to be viewed from public right-of-way; product dispensers and point of purchase displays; 
scoreboards on athletic fields; flags of any nation, government or noncommercial organization; 
gravestones; religious symbols; commemorative plaques; decorative holiday displays; traditional barber 
poles; the display of street numbers; or display or construction not defined herein as a sign. 

 
18.438.020 Signs permitted in all districts without a permit. 
 
A. The following temporary signs are allowed in all zoning districts and do not require a permit: 
 

1. Signs advertising the sale, lease, or rental of the premises upon which the sign is located, and not 
exceeding twelve (12) square feet in area, except in all residential districts where the area of the 
sign shall not be more than six (6) square feet. 

2. Legal notices, identification, information, or directional signs erected or required by 
governmental bodies. 

3. Political signs, each not exceeding twelve (12) twenty (20) square feet, not erected more than 
thirty (30) days prior to, and removed not more than one week after, the election or event to 
which the sign pertains. 



 

 

4. One sign per street frontage contractor of a building which is under construction, provided the 
advertising display area of such a sign shall not exceed sixteen (16) square feet in residential 
districts or twenty (20) square feet in other districts. 

5. Temporary Signs associated with garage or yard sales, non-profit community events, or similar 
activities are allowed as long as they meet the following requirements: (1) Such signs may be 
posted or displayed for no more than five (5) days; (2) All such signs must be dated with the date 
of posting; (3) All such signs must be removed within forty-eight (48) hours after the sale or 
other activity in question.  (Ord 689 § 2(part), 2007;Ord 593 § 1, 1996; Ord 523 § § 1, 3(part), 
1989) 
 

B. Directional Signs.   
1. Signs directing and guiding traffic and parking on private property, but bearing no advertising 

matter, and not exceeding twelve (12) square feet in area, except in all residential districts where 
the area of the sign shall not be more than six (6) square feet. 

2. Way Signs erected by a Governmental Agency or in Cooperation with a Governmental Agency. 
3. “Entry” or “Welcome To” Signage installed by a Governmental Agency or in Cooperation with a 

Governmental Agency. 
 

C. Identification Signs:  Signs bearing only property numbers, post box numbers, names of occupants 
of premises, or other identification of premises not having commercial connotations, and not 
exceeding twelve (12) square feet in area, except in all residential districts where the area of the 
sign shall not be more than six (6) square feet. 

D. Architectural Elements:  Integral decorative or architectural features of buildings, except letters, 
trademarks, moving parts, or moving lights. 

E. Bulletin Boards:  Bulletin boards for churches, schools, or other public, religious, or educational 
institution provided such sign is located not less than ten (10) feet from the established right-of-
way line of any street or highway and does not obstruct traffic visibility at street or highway 
intersections. Such signs shall not exceed forty square feet in area; if free standing, each side may 
not exceed forty square feet in area.  Electronic Changeable Copy sign or internal lighting is 
permitted providedi it complies with 18.438.040 C. and is not intrusive on adjacent property. 

F. Flags and insignias of any government except when displayed in connection with commercial 
promotion. 
 

18.438.030 Signs Prohibited in All Districts 
 

A. Revolving Signs. No revolving signs shall be permitted. 
B. Billboards. No billboards shall be permitted.  
C. Abandoned signs or any sign which identifies or advertises an activity, business, product, service 

or special event which is no longer produced, conducted, performed or sold on the premises where 
the sign is located.  A sign is considered abandoned if it meets this definition for a period of six (6) 
months or longer.  If a new business occupies a structure or site, the period for removing the 
abandoned sign is thirty (30) days. 

D. Rotating, flashing or blinking signs, strobe lights and searchlights except electronic message signs 
as provided elsewhere in these regulations. 

E. Signs that have been unlawfully or illegally erected and/or maintained.  



 

 

F. Permanent display of banners, pennants, festoons, balloons, tethered objects, strings of flags, 
streamers, inflated objects or any device intended as an attractant that is affected by the movement 
of the air.  

G. Roof signs higher than the apex of the roof. Religious symbols may extend up to thirty five (35) 
feet. Religious symbols may extend above thirty five (35) feet with a conditional use permit. 
Existing religious symbols are exempt from these provisions.  

H. Signs imitating or resembling official traffic or government signs or signals.  
I. Advertising matter or sign painted, mounted or attached on a vehicle, trailer or boat, outdoor 

storage containers and/or waste receptacles or their enclosures which are stored, parked or 
displayed in a conspicuous manner intended to attract the attention for advertising purposes.  

J. Any sign with exposed incandescent, metal halide or fluorescent light bulbs.  
K. Any sign which emits audible sound, odor, smoke, steam, laser or hologram lights or other visible 

matter, including any device that employs any stereopticon, motion picture or audio projection.  
L. Any sign placed in any public right of way except for signs erected by the city, county, state or 

other authorized government agency; or as authorized by the city council issuance of a right of 
way encroachment permit.  

M. In no event may an illuminated sign be placed or directed to cause glare or reflection that 
constitutes a nuisance in residential areas or a traffic hazard.  

(Ord 689 § 2(part), 2007) 
 

18.438.040 On-site signs requiring a permit. 
 
All on-site signs permitted as accessory uses in business and industrial districts require a 
permit and are subject to the following regulations: 
 

A. PROJECTION:  
1. Projection of wall signs shall not exceed five (5) feet measured from the face of the 

building.  
2. No wall sign may project above the highest point of roof structure of the building to 

which it is attached. 
B. SETBACK:  

1. No on-site, freestanding sign may be set nearer to the lot line adjacent to a street than the 
required minimum setback for the principal uses permitted in the district.  

2. No freestanding sign may be erected or placed closer than fifty (50) feet from a side or 
rear lot line abutting a residential district. 

C. ELECTRIC CHANGEABLE COPY SIGNS:   
1. Such signs are allowed not to exceed twenty (20) square feet per face.   
2. Such lighting shall be limited to bulbs up to eleven (11) watts and equivalent neon 

lighting. In no event may an illuminated sign be placed or directed to cause glare or 
reflection that constitutes a nuisance in residential areas or a traffic hazard.  

3. All wiring, fittings, and materials used in the construction, connection, and operation of 
illuminated signs shall be in accordance with the state electrical code.  Electronic 
changeable copy signs shall not be permitted in the CB-4 Districts.  

D. HEIGHT:  
1. No freestanding sign shall exceed twenty (20) feet in height.   
2. In the CB-4 District no sign shall exceed ten (10) feet in height. 

E. NUMBER OF SIGNS PERMITTED:  



 

 

1. In business and industrial districts, one (1) freestanding sign per frontage, provided such 
sign meets all other requirements of this title.   

2. Multiple freestanding signs on a lot shall have a minimum spacing of fifty (50) feet.    
3. In addition, up to three (3) wall signs per building frontage may be installed provided the 

total area does not exceed the allowable area.    
4. Where there are multiple businesses, each business shall be allowed one (1) wall sign 

provided the total allowable area does not exceed the other requirements in this title. 
F. PERMITTED SURFACE AREA: 

1. Freestanding Signs:  
a. The total surface area of all freestanding signs on a property is limited to one 

hundred (100) square feet per side plus ten (10) square feet for each additional 
tenant in multi-tenant buildings or one (1) square feet for each five (5) feet of 
building frontage over one hundred (100) feet.   In no case shall a single face of a 
freestanding sign exceed one hundred and fifty (150) square feet and in no case 
shall the total surface area exceed three hundred (300) square feet.   

b. Each face of the sign is counted in the total surface area for free standing signs.  
c. Freestanding signs in the CB-4 District are limited to fifty (50) square feet on any 

one side.   
2. Wall signs: 

a.  Wall signs in the CB-2 District shall be permitted to cover twenty-five (25) 
percent of the exposed facade of the building on which they are mounted.   

b. Wall signs in the CB-4 District are permitted to cover fifty (50) square feet. 
c.  Wall signs in the CB-4 District are permitted to cover fifty (50) square feet plus 

one (1) square foot for each one (1) foot of lineal building frontage in excess of 
fifty (50) feet.   

G. PROJECTING SIGNS:  
1. The sign shall be erected at right angles to the building face and be at least nine (9) feet 

above grade and shall not extend over any vehicular right-of-way.  
2. The maximum area per sign face shall not exceed twenty (20) square feet plus one (1) 

square foot for every one (1) linear foot of building frontage. 
H. MEASUREMENT OF SIGN AREA: Sign area for the purpose of measuring total square footage 

shall be measured as a total of all sign faces including multifaced signs.  
1. Sign Copy With Background: Sign copy mounted, affixed or painted on a background 

panel or area distinctively painted, textured or constructed as a background for the sign 
copy, is measured as that area contained within the sum of the smallest rectangle(s) that 
will enclose both the sign copy and the distinctive background panel or area.  

2. Individual Letters: Sign copy mounted as individual letters or graphics against a wall, 
fascia, mansard or parapet of a building or surface of another structure, that has not been 
painted, textured or otherwise altered to provide a distinctive background for a sign copy, 
is measured as a sum of the smallest rectangle(s) that will enclose each word and each 
graphic in the total sign.  

3. Area Calculation: Sign area for the purpose of measuring total square footage shall be 
measured as a total of all sign faces including multi-faced signs 

(Ord 689 § 2(part), 2007; Ord. 615 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 523 §§ 1, 3(part), 1989) 
 

 
18.438.080 Permitted signs in zoning districts. 



 

 

 

A. Permitted signs in zones CSAG-20, CSAG-10 and CSAG-5 shall be as follows: 
1. Exempt signs listed herein; 
2. One freestanding sign plus one wall sign for each place of business; 
3. One off-site sign when otherwise permitted and when located in same zoning district as 

business. 
 

B. Permitted signs in zones CR-1, CR-2, CR-3, CR-4, and CR-5 shall be as follows: 
1. Exempt signs listed herein; 
2. One sign not exceeding six (6) square feet in area, in connection with a nonresidential 

permitted or conditionally permitted use; 
3. No sign shall exceed five (5) feet above ground elevation. 

 
C. Permitted signs in zones CRA-1, CB-1, CB-5 shall be as follows: 

1. Exempted signs listed herein; 
2. One freestanding sign per developed multi- family or business lot provided the subject 

matter of such sign shall be limited to the name of the primary business and the business 
tenants of the building, as appropriate; 

3. One wall sign; 
4. Freestanding signs shall not exceed six (6) feet in height; and 
5. The sign area shall not exceed sixteen (16) square feet per face. 

 
D. Permitted signs in zones CB-2, CI-1, and CI-2 shall be as follows: 

1. Exempt signs listed herein; 
2. Freestanding signs; 
3. Wall signs; 
4. Projecting signs; 
5. Freestanding multiple business signs; 
6. Electronic Changeable Copy; 
7. Off-site sign; and 
8. Affiliation sign not exceeding four (4) square feet. 

 
E. Permitted signs in zones CB-4 (Central Business)  

1. A maximum of two (2) signs of any combination for the following signs shall be allowed; 
One (1) wall sign, one window sign, one (1) projecting sign, one (1) awning sign, one 
(1) freestanding sign.  

2. Awning – In the CB-4 District, the sign area of the awning shall equal no more than fifty 
(50)  square feet 

3. In addition to the chosen combination of signs a business may hang an "under canopy 
sign." Under canopy signs shall be constructed of rigid material, and shall not project 
more than twelve (12) inches below the canopy and shall not be less than seven and one-
half (7-1/2) feet above the sidewalk or grade line. The under canopy sign shall not 
exceed ten (10) square feet in area of each face, and shall not have more than two (2) 
signage surfaces.  

4. Freestanding signs are allowed only if the building has a twenty (20) feet setback.  
5. One "menu" or "A-frame" sign is allowed per developed site that does not exceed six (6) 

square feet per side but not more than two (2) feet wide; and businesses must maintain a 



 

 

minimum of forty-four (44) inches of clearance around any sign located in the public 
sidewalk to meet ADA requirements.  

6. Wall Signs – Signs shall have finished or framed edges.   
7. Materials – Signs may be constructed of, but not limited to painted, stained or carved 

wood; brick or stone; glass; high density urethane foam; gold leaf and silver leaf; metal 
which is painted, rusted or anodized, rust resistant, or otherwise treated to prevent 
reflective glare.   

8. Prohibited materials include: plexiglass, polymers, plastics, acrylic, lexan and flex face, 
with the exception of those used for letters. 

9. Bright and glossy or fluorescent colors and reflective surfaces are prohibited.    
10. Because night light pollution is a growing problem, reduction or turning off sign lighting 

during non-operating hours is encouraged. 
F. Permitted signs in the zone of CPUD shall be as follows: 

1. Exempt signs listed herein, and 
2. As otherwise permitted in CB-4, CB-5 or CR zones.  

(Ord. 555 § 3(part), 1992; Ord. 523 §§ 1, 3(part), 1989) 

 
 

                                    
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 758 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, 
ADDING TITLE 18 CHAPTER 18.439 CLUSTER UNIT DEVELOPMENT TO THE COLUMBIA 
FALLS MUNICIPAL CODE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to add Chapter 18.439 Cluster Unit Development 
to provide another zoning tool that respects the overall density of a property but also 
preserves more farm and open space areas. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Columbia Falls City-County Planning Board and Zoning Commission 
conducted a public hearing on the proposed text amendments on Tuesday, November 10, 
2015 and recommended adoption of the text amendments; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined, upon conducting a subsequent hearing 
on December 7, 2015, that said amendments to the Columbia Falls Municipal Code are in 
the best interests of the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section One.   Section Amended: Chapter 18.439 Columbia Falls Municipal Code is 
hereby added as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section Two.  Inconsistent Provisions:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section Three.    Severability:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any 
provision of this Ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision. 
 
 Section Four.   Effective Date:   This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days 
after its final passage and approval by the City Council of the City of Columbia Falls, 
Montana.  
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA 
THIS 21st DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015, THE COUNCIL VOTING AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 AYES:   
 
 NOES:  

 
 ABSENT:  
       ___________________________________                                                     
       City Clerk 
 
 APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, THIS _____ DAY OF 
JANUARY, 2016. 
 
       _________________________________                                                          



 

 

       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________                                 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

18.349 CLUSTER UNIT DEVELOPMENT  

 18.349.010 Definition. 

 "Cluster development" means a subdivision with lots clustered in a group of lots that is designed to 

concentrate building sites on smaller lots in order to reduce capital and maintenance costs for 

infrastructure through the use of concentrated public services and utilities and/or creating a large open 

space tract that preserves agricultural lands or sensitive areas important to wildlife and wildlife habitat,. 

“Cluster Area” means the total area of the development less the combined area of dedicated public 

right-of-way and area set aside as open space. 

 18.349.020 Permitted uses in a residential cluster development 

Cluster unit development may overlay suburban and urban residential zones. 

Cluster unit developments shall be subject to the following: 

A. Minimum area of the development: 

1. Within districts zoned SAG-20, SAG-10 or SAG-5, the minimum lot size permitted in the 

respective district based on the proposed density. 

2. Within other districts zoned residential, the minimum area is 5 gross acres. 

B. Types of buildings and uses: Any uses that are permitted in the underlying district for which the 

planned unit development is proposed.  In addition the following uses may be permitted:  

1. In residential zones, other than SAG zones, multiple units may be placed in a single building, 

except the number of  multi-family units within one building may not exceed ten (10) units and 

the total number of multifamily units within the cluster development does not exceed thirty 

percent (30%) of the total of all units;   

2. Within districts zoned SAG grazing and farming is permitted. 

18.349.030 Bulk and dimensional requirements 

A. The overall density of the cluster development shall not exceed the density allowed in the underlying 
district, except as follows:   

1. The density may be increased by l.2 (one and two tenths) units for each one unit of qualifying 

affordable housing that is either provided within the development or an approved contribution to a 

qualified affordable housing project elsewhere within the jurisdiction; such density increase not to 

exceed ten percent (10%) of the allowed density. 



 

 

2. The density may be increased by an additional amount, not to exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the 

allowed density, where all of the open space is enrolled in an approved conservation easement 

held by the local government with jurisdiction, and the general public is provided reasonable 

access. 

3. The base density in districts zoned SAG may be a ratio of 1.5:1 (one and one half to one) and may 

be increased in accordance with 1 and 2.   

B. A cluster development may have more than one cluster area but no cluster area shall have more than 

fifty percent (50%) of the total cluster development lots, nor fewer than five (5) lots. 

C. The minimum size of a lot of record within a cluster development shall be not less than the cluster 

area divided by the total number of units permitted but not less than the minimum area that may be 

served by approved potable water and sanitary sewer system, nor less than 3,000 square feet.  The 

size of a sublot for two family or multifamily dwellings may not be less than 1,500 square feet.   

D. The maximum lot coverage by all buildings, building height, and parking requirements, as specified 

for the district, shall be applied to the cluster development as a whole and not to individual lots of 

record within the cluster development. 

E. Building or primary uses shall not be placed closer than five (5) feet of any side lot property line. 

F. Front and rear yard widths shall be either that specified for the district or reduced to not less than 

twenty (20) feet by the governing body as part of the subdivision review and approval process.  

G. Not more than fifty percent (50%) of the cluster development site shall be devoted to lots, parking 

facilities, streets, buildings, and accessory buildings and right-of-way. The remaining fifty percent 

(50%) shall remain as open space.   

H. A landscape buffer abutting the boundary of the cluster development and the cluster area(s) shall be 

provided where the distance between the boundary and closest point of the cluster area perimeter is 

less than thirty (30) feet:  

1. The buffer shall be a width that conforms to the minimum front yard setback requirements for the 

underlying district.   

2. Such required buffer shall not be used as parking nor storage.  

3. Perpetual maintenance of the buffer shall be in accordance with prescriptions in this chapter for 

homeowner’s common areas. 



 

 

18.349.030 Creation and Maintenance of Required Open Space 

A. At least fifty percent (50%) of the total gross area of the cluster development site shall be set aside as 

open space. 

B. The open space must be enrolled in an irrevocable conservation easement or protected by a Deed 

Restriction that prohibits further subdivision of the open space unless lifted by the City Council.   

C. Maintenance of the open space shall be secured in the following manner:  

1. Adequate provisions shall be made for the perpetual maintenance of all open space areas by the 

inclusion of covenants running with the land in the deeds or other instruments of conveyance, 

delineating such open areas.  The covenant shall require one of the following options: 

a. Obligating purchasers to participate in a homeowners association and to support 

maintenance of the open space areas by paying to the association assessments sufficient for such 

maintenance and subjecting their properties to a lien for enforcement of payments of the 

respective assessments;  

Empowering the governing body as well as purchasers in the development to enforce the 

covenants in the event of failure of compliance; and  

Providing for an agreement that if the governing body is required to perform any maintenance 

work prescribed herein above, said purchasers would pay the cost thereof and the same shall be a 

lien upon their properties until said cost has been paid.  

Assurance that such covenants will be included in the deeds or other instruments of conveyance 

shall be evidenced by the recording in the County Clerk and Recorder’s Office of Flathead 

County, Montana, of a declaration providing for perpetual maintenance of the open space areas, 

as prescribed above and identifying the tract and each lot therein. The declaration shall be 

included in the deed or other instrument of conveyance of each lot of record and shall be made 

binding on all purchasers, provided that such declaration may, as to subsequent conveyance other 

than the initial conveyance of each lot of record, be incorporated by reference in the instrument 

of conveyance.  

b. The deed restriction provides for the land owner or developer to retain the open space 

parcel and maintain the property in agricultural use or managed open space. 

D. All portions of the open space shall be uninterrupted, except for minor and minimal intrusion of 

right-of-way corridors.  Cluster areas should be located in areas that require minimal disturbance to 

the open space. 



 

 

E. During construction of streets, utility lines or lots, the work and any surface disturbance shall be 

confined to areas outside the open space area.   

F. Open space must include sensitive areas within the cluster development site including: areas of high 

ground water that seasonally surfaces; wetland; floodplain; areas within fifty (50) one hundred (100) 

feet of high water of a stream (other than ephemeral streams), river, or surface water body; slopes 

that are steeper than 25% if the elevation difference from top  to toe of slope is greater than thirty 

(30) vertical feet; forested areas bearing healthy trees;  and other sensitive areas that provide wildlife 

habitat.  

18.349.060 Exemption or Waiver of Specific Regulations 

 

A. Cluster development is exempt from park land dedication provisions by establishment of the open 

space lot. 

B. Required right-of-way widths may be reduced to forty (40) feet and street developed width to twenty 

two (22) feet.  The requirement for providing curbs and sidewalks may be waived.   Such reduction 

and waiver are applicable to a cluster area that conforms to the following: 

1. An approved walk path is provided on one side of the street separated from the street by a 

minimum five (5) foot wide landscape buffer. 

2. Residential lots need not abut a street provided that a common front court yard is provided and 

off-street parking provided in an adjacent area.  The court yard must meet the following 

prescription: 

a. the court shall be not less than forty (40) feet wide,  

b. the furthest front yard property line shall be not more than one hundred twenty (120) feet 

from the nearest front street access, 

c. the court front street entrance shall be not more than one hundred (100) feet from the nearest 

fire hydrant,  

d. only primary use building shall front the common court; and 

e. primary use building shall not exceed a total count of ten (10) buildings. 

18.349.070 Application procedure. 

The application subdivision shall be executed by the individual(s) whose successors and assignees 

shall be responsible for carrying out the requirements and obligations of the cluster subdivision.  



 

 

A. Submit complete subdivision application, application fee and site plan; size and quantity of site plan 

copies as specified in the application. 

B. The separate site plan(s) including the following shall accompany the preliminary plat: 

1. Total acreage, present zoning classification and zoning classification of all adjoining districts; 

2. Density in dwelling units per gross acre; 

3. Location, size, height and number of stories, use or uses to be contained in each existing or 

proposed structure; 

4. Location, width, surfacing and layout of all streets, parking areas and pedestrian walks; 

5. Location and number of proposed parking spaces; 

6. Location and height of all fences, walls and screen plantings; 

7. Location of all common spaces and facilities; and 

8. Proposed landscaping. 

C. The applicant shall furnish: 

1. The proposed time schedule for the completion of the development or the phasing thereof; 

2. A copy of all proposed covenants, restrictions and easements; 

3. A copy of the proposed articles of incorporation and by-laws of any corporation and/or 

homeowners associations to be formed; and 

4. Any other information that the zoning commission or the city council may deem necessary. 

D. The preliminary plat shall be prepared in accordance to requirements of the subdivision regulations 

and shall include space for certification of approval by the city council.  

18.349.080 Approval of the planned unit development. 

  The city council shall approve a cluster development with the preliminary plat by resolution which 

shall incorporate by reference all documents included in the site plan and the recommendation of the 



 

 

planning board.  The final plat shall be submitted and approved by the city council and recorded in the 

County Courthouse.  The face of the final plat shall bear the following language: 

Uses and development within this plat shall be in conformance with the Cluster 
Development plan approved by the City of Columbia Falls by Resolution #_______ 
enacted ____________, 20___. 
I, __________________________________________, Owner of the property set forth 
herein, do hereby agree that I will develop the property in accordance with the 
approved Cluster Development Plan. 

18.349.090 Prior to construction 

A. Prior to the construction of public infrastructure the developer shall submit verification that the 

service provider has reviewed and approved the construction plan. 

B. Prior to the issuance of a building permit (if such a permit is required) the developer shall submit 

verification that the building(s) are in compliance with the approved Cluster Development Plan.   

 



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1717 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, 
MONTANA, ANNEXING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE EAST 
HALF OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 20 WEST, P.M.M., 
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA, DESCRIBED AS PARCEL A ON CERTIFICATE 
OF SURVEY NO. 19988, RECORDS OF FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Title 7, Chapter 2, Part 45, M.C.A., 
to annex certain wholly surrounded land; 
 
 WHEREAS, the property more particularly described below is wholly 
surrounded by the City as defined by state law; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council believes it to be in the best interests of the 
City and its residents, as well as the inhabitants of the property to be annexed, 
to annex said wholly surrounded land; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution 1715 on November 2, 2015 
declaring its intent to annex the property described below; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City gave notice of its intention to annex the described 
property and to hold a hearing on December 7, 2015 to take comment on the 
proposed annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City held a public hearing on December 7, 2015 and 
considered any and all comment on the matter. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section One:  The City hereby annexes all of the property identified as 
follows: 
 

A tract of land in the the East Half (E½) of Section 17, Township 
30 North, Range 20 West, P.M.M., Flathead County, Montana, 
more particularly described as Parcel A on Certificate of Survey 
No. 19988, records of Flathead County, Montana. 

 
 Section Two:  That the boundaries of the City of Columbia Falls, 
Montana are hereby extended to include the above-described property. 
 
 Section Three: That this Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon its passage and approval by the City Council. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, 
MONTANA THIS 21st DAY OF DECEMBER 2015, THE COUNCIL VOTING AS 
FOLLOWS:  
 
 AYES:   
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT:           
                                  
 
      _________________________ 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



 APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, THIS 
_____DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015. 
                                                                    
      ____________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 





 

 Return to: 
City of Columbia Falls 
130 6th Street West 
Columbia Falls, MT 59912 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 RESOLUTION NO.  1718 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA 
ABANDONING, DISCONTINUING AND VACATING A 10’ PORTION OF  8th 
STREET EAST ADJACENT TO LOT 1, BLOCK 61 COLUMBIA FALLS ORIGINAL, 
COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA 
 
 

WHEREAS, the prospective owners of Lot 1, Block 61, Columbia Falls Original, 
Columbia Falls, Montana have presented a petition to the City Council to abandon, 
discontinue and vacate a 10’ portion of the platted 8th ST E at said location; 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received a petition in writing of at least fifty percent (50%) 
of the prospective owner of the lot on the subject street; 
 

WHEREAS, the City has accepted said petition and agreed to act thereon; 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed action of the Council was duly advertised according to law 
for a hearing to be held thereon at its regular meeting on December 7, 2015; 
 

WHEREAS, said hearing was held, with all objections or objectors, either in person 
or in writing, having been fully considered; and 
 

WHEREAS, at the completion of said hearing, it was determined by the Council that 
abandonment of 10’ of platted 8th Street East adjacent to Lot 1, Block 61, is in the best 
interests of the City due to the steep slope of the lot; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section One.  10’ of the platted 8th Street East adjacent to Lot 1, Block 61, Columbia 
Falls Original, Columbia Falls, MT is hereby vacated upon ownership of Lot 1, Block 61 to 
Connie Melashenko. 
 

Section Two.  The abandonment, discontinuance and vacation of said public way 
shall not affect the right of any public utilities which may be contained therein or thereon.  
The City of Columbia Falls expressly reserves any and all easements it may have or 
require over or under said public way. 

 
Section Three.  That upon the date that this Resolution becomes effective, subject 

to the transfer of ownership, the abandoned 10’ of 8th Street East shall cease to be the 
property of the City of Columbia Falls, Montana, and said abandoned portion shall be 
placed upon the tax rolls with the 10’ strip being added to the adjacent property, Lot 1, 
Block 61, Columbia Falls Original, Columbia Falls, MT. 

 
 

Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon its final passage and adoption by the City Council.   
 
 
 
 



 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, 
MONTANA THIS 21st DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015. THE COUNCIL VOTING AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
AYES:  
   
NOES:  
  
ABSENT:  

  
 
                 _________________________________ 

City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA THIS   

_____DAY OF DECEMBER 2015.   

 
 
      _____________________________ 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________ 
City Clerk 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
CORRESPONDENCE LIST  

COUNCIL MEETING 
December 21, 2015 

 
 
 
Regular Correspondence: 
12/09/15 Letter from Attorney General- 






	Agenda
	Claims
	Payroll
	Dec. 7, 2015 Council Minutes
	Water Rights
	Ord 756 Chapter 18  bldg and acc bldg height amendment
	Ord 757 Chapter 18 438 signs
	Ord 758 Chapter 18 439 Cluster Unit Dev
	Res 1717 Annex Wholly Surrounded final
	Street Abandonment
	Res 1718 10 strip abd 8th ST E
	InfoCorresList 08-18-14.docbt.docbt
	Police Report

